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Region 1.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

1. The Respondent is Accu-Care, a company that formulates, packages, distributes
and sells swimming pool chemicals. Respondent is a business incorporated under the laws of the
State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (“Rhode Island”), doing business in Rhode
Island. Respondent’s principal place of business is located at 109 King Philip Road, Rumford
(within the City of East Providence), Rhode Island 02916 (the “Facility™).

2. Respondent is a “person” as defined by Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s),
and is subject to FIFRA and the regulations promulgated thereunder.

3. Section 2(t) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(t), defines the term “pest” to mean, in
pertinent part, “any insect, rodent, nematode, fungus, weed” or “any other form of terrestrial or
aquatic plant or animal life or virus, bacteria, or other micro-organisms”™ declared by EPA to be a
pest under Section 25(c)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136w(c)(1).

4. Section 2(u)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C § 136(u)(1), defines the term “pesticide” to
mean, in pertinent part, “any substance or mixture of substances intended for preventing,
destroying, repelling, or mitigating any pest.”

5. Prior to the violations alleged in this Complaint, Respondent sought and obtained
registration of a product known as “Pool Clear” as a pesticide from EPA’s national office in
Washington, D.C. (“EPA Headquarters™), pursuant to Section 3 of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136a. The
Pool Clear product, identified by the EPA pesticide registration number assigned thereto (EPA

Reg. No. 62032-20001), is a “pesticide,” as defined by Section 2(u)(1) of FIFRA.
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6. Prior to the violations alleged in this Complaint, Respondent sought and obtained
status as a supplemental registrant to produce, distribute, or sell as “distributor products” within
the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 152.132, each of the pesticide products listed below, identified by the
supplemental registration numbers assigned thereto:

i.  “Accu-Clor,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032;

ii.  “Robelle Shock Treatment,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-53822;
iii.  “Aaron Super-Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032;
iv.  “Surfside Liquid Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032;

v.  “Poolman Pools Super-Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032;
vi.  “Islander Super-Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032;

vii.  “Target Super-Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032; and,

viii.  “Super-Shock,” EPA Reg. No. 550-198-62032.

Each of the pesticide products listed in Subparagraphs 6(i) through 6(viii), above, is a
“pesticide,” as defined by Section 2(u)(1) of FIFRA.

7. At all times relevant to the violations alleged in this Compliant, Respondent
produced, distributed, and sold each of the pesticide products described in Paragraphs 5 and 6,
above, at the Facility and was a “producer” within the meaning of that term, as defined at 40
CFR. §167.3.

8. Section 2(dd) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(dd), defines the term “establishment” as
“any place where a pesticide or device or active ingredient used in producing a pesticide is
produced, or held, for distribution or sale.” Accordingly, Respondent’s Facility is an
“establishment” under Section 2(dd) of FIFRA.

9. On or about August 25, 2010, duly-authorized EPA inspectors (the “EPA

Inspectors”) conducted a FIFRA inspection at the Facility pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 of FIFRA,
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the past year. A producer is also responsible, under 40 C.F.R. § 167.85(d), for obtaining,
completing, and submitting this information annually to EPA, even if the establishment did not
produce any pesticide products.

15. Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(2)(L), provides that it is
unlawful for any person who is a producer to violate any of the provisions of FIFRA Section 7, 7
U.S.C. § 136e, including but not limited to the requirement to produce pesticides subject to
FIFRA only in an establishment which has been registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing
establishment.

16.  Based upon the August 2010 Inspection and further investigation by EPA, at no
time prior to the August 25, 2010 EPA Inspection had Respondent registered the Facility as a
pesticide-producing establishment, pursuant to Section 7(a) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136e(a), and
40 C.F.R. § 167.20. Upon information and belief, due to Respondent’s failure to register the
Facility as a pesticide-producing establishment, for all time periods relevant to the violations
alleged in this Complaint, no EPA Establishment Number had been assigned to the Facility by
EPA under FIFRA Section 7.

17.  Based upon the Inspection and further investigation by EPA, at no time prior to
August 25, 2010 did Respondent submit to EPA any annual reports required of registered
establishments under FIFRA Section 7(c) and 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart E.

COUNT 1
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Pool Clear)

18.  Paragraphs 1 through 17 are realleged and incorporated by reference.
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19. On or before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced
the Pool Clear pesticide product identified in Paragraph 5, above, at the Facility.

20.  Respondent’s production of the Pool Clear product at the Facility without that
establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment constituted a
violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136e(a) and 136j(a)(2)(L), and
the FIFRA regulations, at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

21.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Pool Clear product,
Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(2)(L), and the
regulations promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to
Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136l(a)(1).

COUNT 2
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Accu-Clor)

22, Paragraphs 1 through 21 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

23.  On or before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced
the Accu-Clor pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

24.  Respondent’s production of the Accu-Clor product at the Facility without that
establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment constituted a
violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136e(a) and 136j(a)(2)(L), and
the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

25.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Accu-Clor product,

Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA and the regulations promulgated
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pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT 3
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Robelle Shock Treatment)

26. Paragraphs 1 through 25 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

27.  On before August 25,2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced the
Robelle Shock Treatment pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

28.  Respondent’s production of the Robelle Shock Treatment product at the Facility
without that establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment
constituted a violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136e(a) and
136j(a)(2)(L), and the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

29.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Robelle Shock
Treatment product, Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA and the
regulations promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to
Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT 4
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Aaron Super-Shock)

30. Paragraph 1 through 29 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

31.  On before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced the
Aaron Super-Shock pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

32.  Respondent’s production of the Aaron Super-Shock product at the Facility
without that establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment

constituted a violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136e(a) and
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136j(a)(2)(L), and the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

33.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Aaron Super-Shock
product, Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA and the regulations
promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to Section
14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT 5
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Surfside Liquid Shock)

34. Paragraph 1 through 33 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

35. On or before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced
the Surfside Liquid Shock pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

36.  Respondent’s production of the Surfside Liquid Shock product at the Facility
without that establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment
constituted a violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136¢(a) and
136j(a)(2)(L), and the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

37.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Surfside Liquid
Shock product, Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA and the
regulations promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to
Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT 6
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Poolman Pools Super-Shock)

38. Paragraph 1 through 37 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

39. On or before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced
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promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to Section
14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT 8
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Target Super-Shock)

46. Paragraph 1 through 45 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

47. On or before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced
the Target Super-Shock pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

48.  Respondent’s production of the Target Super-Shock product at the Facility
without that establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment
constituted a violation of Sections 7(a) and 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §§ 136e(a) and
136j(a)(2)(L), and the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167, Subpart B.

49.  Accordingly, on at least one (1) occasion with respect to the Target Super-Shock
product, Respondent Accu-Care violated Section 12(a)(2)(L) of FIFRA and the regulations
promulgated pursuant to FIFRA, for which penalties may be assessed pursuant to Section
14(a)(1) of FIFRA.

COUNT9
(Production in Unregistered Establishment — Super-Shock)

50. Paragraph 1 through 49 are realleged and incorporated by reference.

51, On before August 25, 2010, on at least one (1) occasion, Respondent produced the
Super-Shock pesticide product identified in Paragraph 6, above, at the Facility.

52. Respondent’s production of the Super-Shock product at the Facility without that

establishment being registered with EPA as a pesticide-producing establishment constituted a
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56.  Based on the forgoing findings of violations of FIFRA, EPA seeks to assess a civil
penalty of up to $7,500 per violation for each of the violations alleged in Counts 1 through 9,
above. The assessment of a penalty for the violations is warranted because the violations are
serious and involve the production of pesticides in an establishment not registered with EPA as a
pesticide-producing establishment subject to reporting and other requirements applicable to such
facilities, under Section 7 of FIFRA, and the FIFRA regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 167.

57.  Indetermining the amount of the penalty to be assessed under Section 14(a) of
FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136l(a), EPA will take into account the statutory factors listed in Section
14(a)(4) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136[(a)(4), which include the appropriateness of the penalty to the
size of the business of the person charged, the effect of the penalty on the person’s ability to
continue in business, and the gravity of the violations. EPA will also take into account the
“FIFRA Enforcement Response Policy” issued by the Waste and Chemical Enforcement
Division, Office of Civil Enforcement, Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance, dated
December 2009 (the “Penalty Policy”), a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint.

58. Prior to any hearing on this case, EPA will file a document specifying a proposed
penalty based on the number of violations and explaining how the proposed penalty was
calculated, as required by the Consolidated Rules (enclosed).

59.  Neither assessment nor payment of any administrative penalty shall affect
Respondent’s continuing obligation to comply with FIFRA, including obtaining a valid

establishment registration number for Respondent’s Facility and its implementing regulations.
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